












SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

August 8, 2017 
Downieville School, 130 School St., Downieville, CA 95936 

This meeting was videoconferenced to Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Loyalton, 
CA 96118 

5 pm for Closed Session 
6 pm for Regular Session 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President SHARON DRYDEN called the meeting to order at 6 pm. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
  
 PRESENT: Ms.  Sharon Dryden, President   
   Mr.  Allen Wright, Vice President  
    Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Clerk 
   Mr.  Mike Moore, Member  
   Ms.  Patty Hall, Member 
 
 ABSENT:     None   
   
C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

HALL/DRISCOLL 
5/0  

 
1. Superintendent’s Report 

 
a. Downieville School reduction in staff; Hillary Lozano, Instructional Aide, .9 FTE (5.4 hours 

daily), effective August 28, 2017 – with new teacher hire, this position is no longer needed 
and this employee will move to a district instructional aide position. 

b. SELPA Update – Will Meet with the SELPA team during inservice days.  
c. Adapted Physical Education Contract with Lassen County, not to exceed $5000 
d. California Agricultural Teachers’ Induction Program - Cali Griffin, LHS Ag Teacher will be 

mentoring a new teacher out of Westwood, CA. 
e. California Service Region Annual Planning Meeting to be held on August 28 in South Lake 

Tahoe. 
 

2. Business Report 
a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/17 to 07/31/17 
b. Budget Transfer - Auditor’s Email 

 
3. Staff Reports  

SELPA – Dr. Grant met with Mrs. Taylor, new Downieville Special Education teacher 
 

4. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 
 

5. Public Comment –This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing board on any 
item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or not it is listed on the 
agenda.  Five minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty minutes to each subject matter.  
(Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3) 
a. Current location – no comment 
b. Videoconference location – no comment 

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131393/9
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/145075/9


Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
August 8, 2017 
 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held July 11, 2017 
2. Approval of Board Report – Checks Dated 07/01/17 through 07/31/17 

HALL/MOORE 
5/0 

 
E. ACTION ITEMS  
 

 New Business 
 

1. Approval of Expulsion Appeal Handbook Update 
MOORE/HALL 
5/0 

 
2. Presentation and Approval of Forty-Five Day Budget Revise  

DRISCOLL/HALL 
5/0 

 
APPROVAL OF BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  

 
3. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3551, Food Service, revision 
4. Administrative Regulation 4112.2, Certification, revision 
5. DELETE Board Policy 4112.61, 4212.61, 4312.61, Employment References 
6. Administrative Regulations 4112.61, 4212.61, 4312.61, Employment References, revision 
 WRIGHT motioned to approve Items 3, 4, 5 and 6. DRISCOLL seconded. 
 5/0 
 
7. Board Policy & Administrative Regulations 4127, 4227 & 4327, Temp Athletic Team Coaches, 

revision 
After discussion, MOORE motioned this item is tabled until September by which time 
the Site Administrators and Athletic Directors will review.  HALL seconded. 

 5/0 
 

8. Board Policy 4154, Health and Welfare Benefits, revision 
9. Board Policy 4312.1, Contracts, revision 

  MOORE motioned to approve Items 8 and 9.  HALL seconded 
  5/0 

 
10. Board Bylaw 9121, President, revision 

 MOORE motioned to approve Board Bylaw 9121 with the following change:   
 “The president shall may participate in the California School Boards Association's Board 

President's Workshop” /HALL seconded 
 5/0 
 

11. Board Bylaw 9220, Governing Board Elections, revision 
  



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
August 8, 2017 
 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

 MOORE motioned to approve Board Bylaw 9220, choosing the following Options in 
sequential order: 

 OPTION 3: Election from trustee area/hybrid method 
 OPTION 1: Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections 

official for inclusion in the voter's pamphlet. 
 OPTION 2: The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, 

mailing, or electronically distributing candidate statements 
OPTION 1: Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more 
candidates has been elected to the Board…The Board at that time shall determine the winner 
by lot.  

 HALL seconded 
 5/0  
  

12. Board Bylaw 9230, Orientation, revision 
 MOORE motioned to approve Board Bylaw 9230 with the following change:  
 “Upon their election or appointment, incoming Board members may shall be provided a 

copy of the Brown Act” 
 HALL seconded 
 5/0 
 

13. Board Bylaw 9250, Remuneration, Reimbursement and other Benefits, revision 
 Moore/HALL 
 5/0 
 

14. Board Bylaw 9400, Discussion and Possible Deletion of Board Self-Evaluation   
   MOORE motioned to approve Board Bylaw 9400 with the following change: 
   “The Governing Board shall may annually conduct a self-evaluation…” 
   HALL seconded. 
   5/0 

 
F. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 
a. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on September 12, 2017, at Sierra County Office of 

Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Loyalton, CA, 96118, beginning with Closed Session, as 
needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting following the Sierra County Board of 
Education meeting at 6 pm.   
 

D. ADJOURN 
 

Adjourned at 6:46 pm. 
DRISCOLL/HALL 
5/0 

 
 

 __________________________   _______________________________  
 Tim Driscoll, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
        Secretary of the Board of Education  











1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
 
AR 4127 4227, 4327 
Personnel 
 
Qualifications 
 
Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not 
necessarily be limited to, competencies in the following areas:  (5 CCR 5593) 
 
1. Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency 
procedures, as evidenced by one or more of the following: 
 
a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and 
possession of a valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card 
 
b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card 
 
c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card 
 
d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' 
Association (NATA/CATA) 
 
e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the 
supervision of an athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and 
conditioning 
 
2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one 
or more of the following: 
 
a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques 
 
b. Completion of inservice programs arranged by a school district or county office of 
education 
 
c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being 
coached 
 
d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached 
 
e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in 
the sport being coached 
 



2 
 

3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, 
the league rules, and, at the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic 
Federation (CIF) 
 
4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport 
participation, as evidenced by one or more of the following: 
 
a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions 
and adolescent or sports psychology for secondary school positions 
 
b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth 
 
c. Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program 
 
The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in 
appropriate training courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons 
serve under the direct supervision of a fully qualified coach until the competencies are met.  (5 
CCR 5593) 
 
Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall 
certify to the Board of Education, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever 
is sooner, that the coach meets the qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593.  
By April 1 of each year, the Board shall certify to the State Board of Education that the 
provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594) 
 
Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria 
specified in 5 CCR 5593 required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district.  
Any volunteer who does not meet such criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully 
qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic program. 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
 
Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers 
 
In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned 
as a temporary athletic team coach shall:  (5 CCR 5592) 
 
1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit 
certificated teachers from teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four 
years, from a licensed physician or other person approved by the district 
 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
 
2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 
44424, or any offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with 
children 



3 
 

 
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall 
obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in 
accordance with Board policy.   (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
 
High School Coaching Education Program 
 
Each high school athletic team coach or volunteer coach shall complete a coaching education 
program that meets the standards developed by the CIF,` including internet on-line courses 
approved by the district. 
Training 
 
Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at his/her expense, a 
coaching education program that meets the standards developed by the CIF and includes, but is 
not limited to, training in regard to sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport 
management, statewide and school regulations, and CPR and first aid, including the signs, 
symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions. A high school coach who has completed the 
education program in another California school district shall be deemed to have met the 
requirement for this district.  (Education Code 49032) 
 
An individual who has not completed the education program may be assigned as a coach for no 
longer than one season of interscholastic competition.  (Education Code 35179.1, 49032) 
 
In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches 
shall complete an approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac 
arrest.  (Education Code 33479.2, 33479.6, 33479.7) 
 
Code of Ethical Conduct 
 
Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic programs 
and activities shall:  (5 CCR 5596) 
 
1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches 
 
2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials 
 
3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct 
 
4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority 
 
5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times 
 
6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players 
 



4 
 

7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and 
standards of the game 
 
8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment 
 
9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at 
any public or private postsecondary educational institution 
 
10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to 
be eligible to participate in athletics 
 
11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, 
anabolic steroids, or any substance to increase physical development or performance that is not 
approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American 
Medical Association 
 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
 
12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools 
 
13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the 
district and the league in which the district participates 
 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  April 10, 2007       Sierraville, California 
revised:  July 12, 2011 
revised: August 8, 2017      Loyalton, California 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
 
BP 4127 4227, 4327 
Personnel 
 
The Governing Board of Education desires to employ highly qualified temporary athletic team coaches 
for the district's sports and interscholastic athletic programs in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, 
motivation, and safety of student athletes. 
 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may employhire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a 
substitute employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary employee in 
a limited assignment capacity. (5 CCR 5590) 
 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 
 
***Note: When hiring a temporary athletic team coach, Education Code 44919 requires districts to first 
make the position available to a credentialed teacher employed by the district. In CTA v. Rialto Unified 
SD, the California Supreme Court held that the law is intended to grant a current certificated employee a 
limited advantage in the hiring process over a noncertificated employee or a nonemployee, provided that 
the applicant applies for the position and meets qualification criteria established by the district. *** 
 
When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic team coach, the position shall first be made 
available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district. (Education Code 44919) 
 
***Note: 5 CCR 5596 specifies a code of ethical conduct for athletic coaches; see the accompanying 
administrative regulation. In addition, the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) has adopted a set of 
principles to guide the conduct of coaches and other participants in interscholastic athletic competitions; 
see BP 6145.2 - Athletic Competition. *** 
 
All coaches shall be subject to Board policies, administrative regulations, and California Interscholastic 
Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct. 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
(cf. 5141.1 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
 
Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to giveassign grades to students.  (5 CCR 5591) 
 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
 
Qualifications and Training 



 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in accordance 
with law and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an appropriate level of 
competence, knowledge, and skill. 
 
***Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with 
students in a district-sponsored student activity program, such as an interscholastic athletic program, is 
required to obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC) from the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing, unless the district requires the candidate to clear a Department of Justice (DOJ) and Federal 
Bureau of Investigation (FBI) criminal background check. See BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer Assistance and 
AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check. Thus, the Governing Board may (1) choose to 
require a temporary athletic team coach to obtain the ASCC or a DOJ/FBI criminal background check; (2) 
permit an individual, at his/her discretion, to obtain either the ASCC or DOJ/FBI check; or (3) apply 
different requirements to different positions in the district (e.g., head coaches vs. assistant coaches; 
employees vs. volunteers). The following paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice. *** 
 
***Note: In addition, Education Code 45125.01 allows multiple districts within a county or within 
contiguous counties to share criminal record information of noncertificated employees and volunteers 
working in a student activity program. *** 
 
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored 
interscholastic athletic program shall, prior to beginning his/her duties, obtainsubmit to the 
Superintendent or designee either an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the Commission 
on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal 
background check through the districtclearance. (Education Code 49024) 
 
An individual who possesses a current Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing, issued prior to July 9, 2010, shall have satisfied district requirements for the 
criminal background check.   (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 
 
Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall certify to 
the Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, that the coach meets 
the qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593.  By April 1 of each year, the Board shall 
certify to the State Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 5593 have been met.  (5 CCR 5594) 
 
***Note: Education Code 49032 requires that all high school coaches complete a district or CIF-
developed coaching education program that meets the guidelines of Education Code 35179.1 and includes 
training on the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions. Additionally, Education Code 
33479.6, as added by AB 1639 (Ch. 792, Statutes of 2016), requires coaches, beginning July 1, 2017, to 
complete a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest and to retake 
such a course every two years thereafter. See the accompanying administrative regulation. *** 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the extent to 
which the district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including those required 
pursuant to Education Code 33479.6 and 49032, and by district policy. 
(cf. 4112.62/4212.62/4312.62 - Maintenance of Criminal Offender Records) 
(cf. 4212.5 - Criminal Record Check) 



 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35179-35179.7  Interscholastic athletics 
33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
44010  Sex offense 
44011  Controlled substance offense 
44332-44332.5  Temporary certificates 
44424  Conviction of a crime 
44808  Liability when students are not on school property 
44916 Written statement indicating employment status 
44919  Classification of temporary employees 
45125.01  Interagency agreements for criminal record information 
45347  Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff 
45349  Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students 
49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
49030-49034  Performance-enhancing substances 
49406  Examination for tuberculosis 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities 
5590-5596  Duties of temporary athletic team coaches 
COURT DECISIONS 
Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District, (2011) 192 Cal. App. 4th 187 
Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma County Union High School District, (2003) 29 Cal. 4th 911 
CTA v. Rialto Unified School District, (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627 
San627San Jose Teachers Association, CTA, NEA v. Barozzi, (1991) 230 Cal.App.3d 1376 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Steroids and Students: What Boards Need to Know, Policy Brief, July 2005 
CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 
Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE 
10-11 Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
(ASCC), July 20, 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://wwwww.csba.org 
California Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.ca-at.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
National Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.nata.org 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopted:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:  April 8, 2011 
revised:  July 12, 2011 
revised: August 8, 2017 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-002 
 

Resolution for Adopting the Gann Limit 
 
WHEREAS, in November of 1979, the California electorate adopted Proposition 4, commonly 
called the “Gann Amendment”, which added Article XIII-B to the California Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the provisions of that Article establish maximum appropriation limitations, 
commonly called “Gann Limits,” for public agencies, including school districts; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 7900 et seq. of the Government Code require this board to establish 
annually, by resolution at a regular or special meeting, the appropriations limit for the County; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 7902.1 authorizes this board to increase the County’s 
appropriations limit to an amount equal to its proceeds of taxes; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this Board does provide public notice that the 
attached calculations and documentation of the Gann Limits for 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 
fiscal years are made in accord with applicable constitutional and statutory law; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board does hereby declare that the appropriations in the 
Budget for the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 fiscal years do not exceed the limitations imposed by 
Proposition 4; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent provides copies of this resolution along 
with the appropriate attachments to interested citizens of this district. 
 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education held 
September 12, 2017 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
VACANT:  
         
      ___________________________ 
      Tim Driscoll, Clerk  



 

  

 
 

 
 
 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 
 
 
 

Unaudited Actuals 
2016/17 

 
 
 
 
 
 

September 12, 2017 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D./Superintendent 



 Sierra County Office of Education 

 Unaudited Actuals 

 2016/17 

 

 

1617 scoe_unaudited_actuals_narrative, 8/23/2017 3:35 PM 

 

COUNTY OFFICE SUPPORTED SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT – 2016-17 
 Provided financial software, .90 FTE technology director, counseling, nursing, and for excess business 

services staff time. 
 

 Provided special education service to SPJUSD resource students. 
 

 Continued career technical education courses at LHS for SPJUSD students. 
 

 Negotiated the construction of a communication tower at the Sierraville school site with Verizon. 
Agreement includes benefit of improved cellular reception, monthly rents of $900 for tower site.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
General Fund Form 01 & Forest Reserve Fund 16: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Ending Fund Balance (SACS Fund 01, page 2, F.2) 
Net increase in operating fund balance is $36,578 for an ending fund balance of $2,331,426. 

Beginning Funding Balance 7/01/2015:   $2,694,339 
Net increase in Fund Balance:  $   36,578 
Ending Fund Balance:       6/30/2016:   $2,331,426  
 
 Components of Ending Fund Balance  

1) Revolving Cash:  $           500 
2) Restricted:   $       32,559 
3) Other Commitments  $     148,078 
4) Assigned   $         9,794 
5) Res Econ. Uncertainties: $     208,560   
6) Unassigned:  $  2,331,426 

 
 
  



 Sierra County Office of Education 

 Unaudited Actuals 

 2016/17 

 

 

1617 scoe_unaudited_actuals_narrative, 8/23/2017 3:35 PM 

2016-2017 RESOURCES 

 

 
 
 
 
The chart below compares revenue for all Funds (01 and 16) 2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-2016 
actuals, 2016-2017 unaudited actuals, and 2017-2018 budget.   
 
 
 

Description 2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Actuals 

2014-2015 
Actuals 

2015-16 
Actuals 

2016-17 
Unaudited 

Actuals 

2017-2018  
Budget 

LCFF Sources $   487,589 $  676,266 $   939,125 $   815,911 $   775,048 807,673 

Federal 559,883 565,127 509,485        503,545        274,540 255,700 

Other State 517,575 502,506 502,695 701,811 688,441 654,087 

Local 283,918 229,395 179,216 191,865 340,611 306,293 

Total $1,848,965 $1,973,294 $2,130,521 2,213,132 2,078,640 $2,023,753 
 
  

$775,048
37.3%

$274,540
13.2%

$688,441
33.1%

$340,611
16.4%

Total Revenue $2,078,640

LCFF

Federal/SRS
Transfer In

Other State

Local



 Sierra County Office of Education 

 Unaudited Actuals 

 2016/17 

 

 

1617 scoe_unaudited_actuals_narrative, 8/23/2017 3:35 PM 

 

2016-2017 EXPENDITURES 
 

 
 
 
The chart below compares expenditures from all Funds (01 & 16) for 2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-
2016 actuals, 2016-2017 unaudited actuals, and 2017-2018 budget.   
  

Description 
2012-2013  

Actuals 
2013-2014 

Actuals 
2014-2015 
Actuals 

2015-16 
Actuals 

2016-17 
Unaudited 

Actuals 
2017-2018  

Budget 

Certificated $  293,901 $  336,904 $  332,452 $  377,396 $  504,973 $  437,973 

Classified 336,222 342,354 313,381 343,330 374,437 382,141 

Benefits 307,122 307,999 302,185 330,652 418,617 380,668 

Books & Supplies 21,440 18,079 59,472 29,151 46,569 69,135 

Services & Operating 223,457 328,217 399,780 402,700 503,111 583,250 

Capital Outlay 0 39,431 13,089 6,264 81,843 38,867 

Other Outgo 681,405 627,449 519,316 389,640 129,294 117,788 

Total $1,863,547 $2,000,433 $1,939,675  $1,879,133 $2,058,844 $2,009,822 
 
 
  

$504,973
24.5%

$374,437
18.2%

$418,617
20.3%

$46,569
2.3%

$503,111
24.4%

$81,843
4.0%

$129,294
6.3%

Total Expenditures $2,058,844

Certificated Salary

Classified Salary

Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies

Operating

Capital Outlay

Other Outgo



 Sierra County Office of Education 

 Unaudited Actuals 

 2016/17 

 

 

1617 scoe_unaudited_actuals_narrative, 8/23/2017 3:35 PM 

 
Other  
 

 Forest Reserve Fund 16  
o County’s Share of Revenue……..$ 16,781 
o Transfer to District………………..$ 95,090 

 
 Debt 

o Net OPEB Obligation:     $148,078 
o Compensated Absences Payable:    $   7,264 
o Net Pension Liability:   $738,278 (FYE 2016)   

 
 Indirect Cost Rate:  

o Fiscal Year 2015-2016…………….18.56% 
o Fiscal Year 2016-2017…………….18.83% 
o Fiscal Year 2017-2018…………….   .87% proposed 

 
 
 
SELPA – Special Education Maintenance of Effort - SEMA 
 
Unduplicated pupil count:  

2010-2011: 50 
2011-2012: 44 
2012-2013: 39 
2013-2014: 42 
2014-2015: 38 
2015-2016: 35 
2016-2017: 35 
 

Expenditure Paid per Funding Source 
Total Federal, State and Local Funds……………$830,956 
Federal Expenditures………………………………$251,881 
State and Local Expenditures……………………..$579,075 
Local only……………………………………………$  70,555 
 
Maintenance of Effort 
State and Local Expenditures per capita 
    
 2013-2014…………$12,042  

2014-2015………....$11,952 revised  
2015-2016…………$13,337 
2016-2017…………$16,545 
 



Reviewed By:

$:

%:
Year: 16/17 16/17 Pos (Neg) % 16/17 16/17 Pos (Neg) % 16/17 16/17 Pos (Neg) %

Period:

Estimated 

Actuals

Unaudited 

Actuals Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Unaudited 

Actuals Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Unaudited 

Actuals Difference Change

Revenues

Revenue Limit Funding8010-8099 795,320       775,048       (20,272)       -2.55% 1 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 795,320       775,048       (20,272)       -2.55%

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 162,340       162,670       330             0.20% 162,340       162,670       330             0.20%

State Revenues 8300-8599 2,249           5,372           3,123           138.86% 2 785,882       683,069       (102,813)      -13.08% 10 788,131       688,441       (99,690)       -12.65%

Local Revenues 8600-8799 301,793       331,611       29,818         9.88% 3 4,500           9,000           4,500           100.00% 11 306,293       340,611       34,318         11.20%

Total Revenues 1,099,362     1,112,032     12,670         1.15% 952,722       854,739       (97,983)        -10.28% 2,052,084     1,966,771     (85,313)        -4.16%

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 174,843       182,517       7,674           4.39% 314,124       322,455       8,331           2.65% 488,967       504,973       16,006         3.27%

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 237,159       264,720       27,561         11.62% 4 106,859       109,717       2,858           2.67% 344,018       374,437       30,419         8.84%

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 232,590       237,313       4,723           2.03% 177,197       181,304       4,107           2.32% 409,787       418,617       8,830           2.15%

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 24,316         9,005           (15,311)        -62.97% 5 54,011         37,563         (16,448)        -30.45% 12 78,327         46,569         (31,758)        -40.55%

Operating Expenditures5000-5999 358,618       306,893       (51,725)        -14.42% 6 310,575       196,218       (114,357)      -36.82% 13 669,193       503,111       (166,082)      -24.82%

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 20,000         26,475         6,475           32.38% 7 64,032         55,368         (8,664)         -13.53% 14 84,032         81,843         (2,189)          -2.60%

Other Outgo 7100-7299, 

7400-7499 24,428         17,424         (7,004)         -28.67% 8 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 24,428         17,424         (7,004)         -28.67%

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (25,533)        (56,760)        (31,227)        122.30% 9 25,533         56,760         31,227         122.30% 9 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,046,421     987,587       (58,834)        -5.62% 1,052,331     959,386       (92,945)        -8.83% 2,098,752     1,946,974     (151,778)      -7.23%

Rev less Exp 52,941         124,444       71,503         135.06% (99,609)        (104,647)      (5,038)          5.06% (46,668)        19,797         66,465         -142.42%

Other Sources/Uses

Transfers In 8910-8979 13,360         16,781         3,421           25.60% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 13,360         16,781         3,421           25.60%

Contributions 8980-8999 (42,626)        (55,648)        (13,022)        30.55% 15 42,626         55,648         13,022         30.55% 15 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (29,266)        (38,868)        (9,602)          32.81% 42,626         55,648         13,022         30.55% 13,360         16,781         3,421           25.60%

Change in Fund Bal 23,675         85,576         61,901         261.46% (56,983)       (48,999)       7,984           -14.01% (33,308)       36,578         69,886         -209.82%

Beg Fund Bal 2,612,781     2,612,781     0                  0.00% 81,558         81,557         (0)                 0.00% 2,694,339     2,694,339     0                  0.00%

Adjustments -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0!

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,612,781     2,612,781     0                  0.00% 81,558         81,557         (0)                 0.00% 2,694,339     2,694,339     0                  0.00%

End Fund Bal 2,636,456     2,698,358     61,902         2.35% 24,575         32,559         7,984           32.49% 2,661,031     2,730,917     69,886         2.63%

Non Spendable 500              500              500              500              

Restricted  -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 24,575         32,559         7,984           32.49% 24,575         32,559         7,984           32.49%

Comitted 118,735       148,078       29,343         24.71% -                  #DIV/0! 118,735       148,078       29,343         24.71%

Assigned -                  9,794           9,794           #DIV/0! 16 -                  #DIV/0! -                  9,794           9,794           #DIV/0!

REU 208,560       208,560       -                  -                  208,560       208,560       -                  

Unassigned 2,308,661    2,331,426    22,765         0.99% (0)                (0)                0                 -100.00% 2,308,661    2,331,426    22,766         0.99%

REU is: 9.9% 10.7%

Tickmark Legend

Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet
Materiality Threshold

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2016/17 Unaudited Actuals



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Additional local funding for Friday Night Live activities, Net revenue increase $4,500

Overall reduction in restricted Materials & Supplies expenditures. Net expenditure reduction of <$16,448>.

Restricted Contracted Sub-agreements for services reduced expenditures <$25,774> - Restricted Travel & Converenced expenses increased $3,941 - Professional consultant expenditures reduced <$91,953> - Other misc operating services 

<$571>. Net expenditure reduction <$114,357>

Restricted Capital Outlay for building improvements reduced expenditures <$8,664>

Increased contributions to Restricted sources from Unrestricted funds to cover program expenditures.

Unrestricted Travel & Conference expense reduced <$5,091> - Dues expenditures reduced <$7,689> - Rents expenses reduced <$1,894> - Professional Consulting expenditures reduced <$35,064>. Other misc. expense reductions 

<$1,987>. Net expenditure reduced <$51,725>.

Unrestricted capital equipment for Polycom equipment increased $6,475.

Unrestricted EPA contribution to ROP/CTE reduced <$7,004>.

Unrestricted/Restricted Indirect Cost Rate increased to reflect true cost of programs.

Special Education Revenues increased $4,300 - TUPE revenue deferred/carryover  <$73,638> - Foster Youth Receivable/Carryforward <$40,277> -  STRS on Behalf $6,802. Net Revenue change <$102,813>.

Unrest State Revenue increased $34,337 - EPA Revenue increased $2,751 - Property Taxes decreased <$16,816>. Net Revenue reduction of <$20,272>.

Mandated Block Grant revenue increased $1,985 - Lottery Unrestricted increased $939 - Misc. other state revenue $199. Net revenue increase of $3,123.

Interest increased $4,475 - Interagency (SCOE) increased $23,287 - Other revenue increased $2,056. Net revenue increase of $29,818.

Classified expenditures for services to District increased $26,476 - Other salary expenditure increase $1,085. Net expenditure increase $27,561.

Overall reduction in unrestricted Materials & Supplies expenditures. Net expenditure reduction of <$15,311>.

Unrestricted Lottery funds assigned for instructional materials.
























































































































































	1_09_12_2017_SCOE_Agenda
	2_SCOE_Account Summary
	3_8_08_2017_SCOE Minutes
	C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

	4_SCOE_Board Reports
	5_4127 AR Temp Athl Coaches_UnfinishedBusiness
	6_4127 BP Temp Athl Coaches_UnfinishedBusiness
	7_18-002 SCOE Gann Limit
	8.5_1617 SCOE_Unaudited_Actuals_Narrative
	8_16.17 SCOE UA Bdgt Comp
	9_SCOE_Unaudited Actuals2016-17

